
Q0001: Will there be a second site visit planned, or will July 12th (the date of the prebid) be the only 
opportunity to visit the site?

Answer: A second site visit was held on July 22, 2013.

Q0002: Are design consultants precluded from submitting on this opportunity if they participated in 
the preparation of Preliminary Engineering and Design-Build Documents for the Dulles 
Corridor Metrorail Project - Phase 2?

Answer: No.

Q0003: Is there any precast concrete construction?

Answer: Use of precast concrete will be dependent on the Offeror's design.

Q0004: Refer to Form PS Price Schedule.

Bid Item Numbers 15, 16, and 17 are unit price items with estimated quantities other than 
one (1).  When the unit bid price is filled in, the prices beyond the decimal point do not show 
up.  The math is correct in the Total Amount column.

Please revise the Unit Price column to show the "cents" portion of the bid price for these 
items.  This will eliminate any confusion that may arise when these cents are not shown.

Answer: The Price Schedule (Form PS) has been revised to eliminate any unit prices.  All bid items are now 
lump sum.  Costs for each bid item will remain rounded to the nearest dollar in the Price Schedule.

See IFB Amendment No. 2 for further clarification.

Q0005: How much is the fee for the OCIP program?

Answer: There is no fee for the OCIP.  Offerors are responsible for the costs of any required insurance not 
provided by the OCIP.

Q0006: Please provide electronic CADD files of Appendix 1 to be used during the bidding process.

Answer: As noted in IFB Amendment No. 2, Registered Planholders may obtain a CD, containing the CAD 
files used to prepare the Statement of Work Appendix 1 Exhibits, from the Dulles Corridor Metrorail 
Project Office.
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Q0007: After having reviewed the IFB documents and in determining the scope of services required 
to perform the work and services as outlined in the IFB, we have determined that a DBE goal 
40% will be nearly impossible to achieve. That is unless we were to subcontract out core 
services that we self-perform in-house. 

As we have always done in the past and as our written guidelines and policies direct us, we 
are committed to supporting and developing business relationships with Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprises. We believe working with small, local, or disadvantaged companies is 
not only beneficial to us, but the community as well, and we endeavor to promote employing 
them each time we are able to. 

We are certain that we can, and want to, involve and engage a reasonable level of DBE 
participation. However, achieving 40% is a long shot without going about it in a way that 
would be counter to the programs intentions of fair and reasonable opportunities for 
meaningful and substantial participation in the Contract. 

Again, this goal would force us to subcontract out our core services that we self-perform in-
house leaving our own internal human and equipment resources to sit idle and 
underutilized. 

We ask that you review and reconsider the 40% DBE goal for the Contract.

Answer: The DBE goal is developed based on the availability of DBEs certified for the various types of work 
in a project that may provide potential subcontract opportunities, without regard for the prime 
contractor’s self-performance plans.

The DBE goal for this Contract was revised to 25% by IFB Amendment No. 1.

Q0008: During the Pre-Bid Meeting it was expressed that a yes or no answer could not be given to 
the question of a second site visit at this time.  I would like to ask that you consider a 
second visit.

Answer: See response to Q0001.

Q0009: Will a bid bond be required for this project?

Answer: No.

Q0010: Sections 2.5.1 and 2.5.3, pages 11 through 13 of Appendix 6, Construction Safety Manual, 
indicate that full time Safety Engineer with no other duties is required to be on site during 
every shift with no exceptions and that if more than one Safety Engineer is required for the 
project that a full time Safety Manager with no other duties is required for the project for all 
CCCP, CMIP, and O&M projects.  Does this requirement apply to this project?

Answer: Yes.
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Q0011: Please clarify whether subcontract tiers below first tier to the Prime Contractor can count 
toward the DBE goal or if only first tier subcontractors will count.

Answer: The DBE goal may be met by subcontracts with DBEs at any tier, or by joint venturing with DBE(s).  
Only work performed by VAUCP-certified DBEs will be counted against the Contractor’s 
achievement of the DBE goal.  

Q0012: Have the wetland limits as shown in Appendix 1 been confirmed with USACE?  Please 
provide a copy of the permit.

Answer: Yes.  The wetlands limits shown in Appendix 1 were approved by the USACE and are valid through 
March 13, 2021.  Jurisdictional Determination letters issued by the USACE are being provided with 
IFB Amendment No. 2.

Q0013: The solicitation has a 40% DBE requirement.  There are not many qualified DBE excavating 
subcontractors.  Since Excavation is the major scope of work on the project, this will limit 
competition on this project by eliminating several qualified, low-cost producing contractors.  
Would the Airports Authority consider revising the DBE requirements to a reasonable 
amount in order to not limit competition and get better market pricing?

Answer: See response to Q0007.

Q0014: Can another site visit be scheduled since it seems that a lot of contractors, including us, 
were not able to go on July 12, 2013, after the Pre-Bid Conference?

Answer: See response to Q0001.

Q0015: The 40% DBE goal seems to be very high for a project like this since the bulk of the work, 
moving the dirt stockpile, will be accomplished by the General Contractor.

Answer: See response to Q0007.

Q0016: What are the compaction requirements for the fill areas?  The percentages in the Specs, P-
152-2, are blank?

Answer: As indicated in the Statement of Work, the fill area compaction requirements are to be determined 
by the Engineer-of-Record, and the Technical Specification must be finalized, signed, and sealed 
by the Engineer-of-Record.

Q0017: Please confirm that a Bid Bond is not required.

Answer: See response to Q0009.
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Q0018: Is there a speed limit for the hauling vehicles to the fill sites for this project?

Answer: There is no specific speed limit.  The Contractor is responsible for ensuring safe operation of 
equipment and for maintaining speeds as required for proper dust control.

Q0019: Does all of the equipment require inspections and rotating lights since we are not anywhere 
near the actual runways or taxiways?

Answer: All equipment must be in compliance with:

- OSHA Regulations;
- the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority Construction Safety Manual, Chapter 4; and
- Division 1 Section 01 10 00.

This project is located outside of the Airport Operations Area (AOA).

Q0020: Are pre-determined Davis-Bacon wage rates required to be used on this project?

If so, please provide the wage decision number.

Answer: Yes.  A copy of the applicable Wage Rate Decision (VA130062) is included in Exhibit 2.3.14 
(Federal Requirements) of the Draft Contract posted on the Airports Authority Website.

Q0021: Will there be another site visit scheduled?

Answer: See response to Q0001.

Q0022: Given that the major component of the direct (field) costs for this project will be the 
transport of the soils presently contained within the soil bank to alternate, local storage 
locations and given that the distance required to transport these soils to the local fill 
locations is less than 1 mile from their current location, we believe it will be extremely 
difficult to achieve the required DBE goal of 40% while keeping costs within an economically 
reasonable and competitive range. These difficulties will combine to limit the DBE 
participation to around 30% of the contract value for those entities that are not prime 
contractor DBEs.

We ask that you reconsider the current 40% DBE requirement and reduce it to a level that 
will enable qualified bidding entities that are not DBEs to participate and have a competitive 
chance at contract award based on low price.

Answer: See response to Q0007.
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Q0024: Is Trucking/Hauling Services a combination of dump truck hauling and tandem axle tractor 
trailers?

Answer: Yes.  Trucking/Hauling applies to any type of trucking or hauling (regardless of the type of truck) 
within a local or metropolitan area.  Generally, the trips are same-day return.

Q0025: Can a CAD file (including topographic information) be provided for bidding purposes?

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0026: What is the percentage required to be self performed by the prime contractor? 

Answer: A self-performance requirement of no less than 30% was established by IFB Amendment No. 1.

Q0027: Is the 40% DBE participation a goal or requirement?  It is referred to as a goal in the 
Solicitation Instructions, but includes federal funding.

Answer: DBE participation is a goal in compliance with U.S. Department of Transportation regulations under 
49 CFR Part 26.  A revised goal of 25% was established by IFB Amendment No. 1.  

Q0028: Since this is a Design/Build project, the final design may change from the scope used in the 
bidding process.  The DBE percentage could be increased, but what if it is decreased or 
certain tasks eliminated altogether?

Example: What if we assumed a box culvert to be installed by a DBE that is later changed to 
a circular pipe that can be self-performed by the Prime Contractor?

Answer: All work committed to DBEs based on the Form CP and Form LOI is expected to be completed by 
the designated DBEs.  While this is a Design/Build project and final designs may change elements 
in the Scope of Work, the Contractor must document good-faith efforts made to replace reduced 
DBE work with substantially equivalent work.

Q0029: If the stockpile waste sites are to be cleared, who will own the cleared timber?

Answer: The Contractor.

Q0030: Please confirm that a Bid Bond is not required.

Answer: See response to Q0009.
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Q0031: Are there liquidated damages associated with the project?

Answer: Yes.  See Section 26.1 of the Draft Contract posted on the Airports Authority Website

Q0032: Historically, it has been difficult to obtain certain information from DBE firms at bid 
submittal time such as signatures, financial information, etc.  Will consideration be made to 
allow a grace period, the way VDOT does, to submit Forms LOI and OL within a couple of 
days post-bid, for the apparent low bidder?

Answer: Contract Participation (Form CP) and Offeror List (Form OL) forms are to be submitted with the 
Offer.  Letters of Intent (Form LOI) will be requested from the apparent successful Offeror following 
the Notice of Recommended Award.

Q0033: Are there work day/hour restrictions associated with this project?

Answer: Work restrictions are covered in the General Specifications, Section 01 10 00.

Q0034: What are the compaction requirements for the general disposal sites?

Answer: See response to Q0016.

Q0035: What are the requirements regarding the compaction/condition of the existing stockpile site 
(future maintenance facility site) when existing stockpile removal is completed?

Answer: The compaction achieved through final grading operations and preparation of the surface for 
seeding  in accordance with Specification 32 92 00 (Turf and Grasses) is sufficient at the future 
Maintenance Facility Site.

Q0036: Will consideration be made to extend the bid date?

Answer: The Offer Due Due was extended to August 12, 2013 by IFB Amendment No. 2.
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Q0037: Reference: Statement of Work, Page 10, Paragraph 5.3.1 - Fill Site Work Areas

The subject sections states: "Material placed at fill sites shall be no higher than 20 feet 
below the 14 CFP Part 77 surface."

Please provide the 14 CFP Part 77 elevation requirements for each of the future fill sites.

Answer: The elevations of the 14 CFR Part 77 surfaces are depicted on Exhibit 1 of Appendix 1.  This 
information is also included in the CAD files provided with Amendment No. 2.  Additional details on 
these requirements is provided in 14 CFR 77.19.

Q0038: Reference:  Bid Form

Bid Item No. 14:  Contractor Hazardous Material Removal and Environmental Mitigation 1 LS.  
Since the documents are clear that the material in the existing stock pile has been tested 
prior to placement and that the existing structures scheduled for demolition have been 
tested and "no asbestos detected".

Please provide the scope of work which is to be included for this Bid Item #14.

Answer: This bid item was intended to cover Contractor-generated hazardous materials.  The revised Price 
Schedule issued with IFB Amendment No. 2 eliminates this bid item.  These costs are now to be 
included in Bid Item 8 (Furnish and Maintain Temporary Facilities).

Q0039: Reference:  Drawing Exhibit No. 1, Proposed Work Area 1-4

Subject drawing Indicates existing fencing in the areas of Stock Piles 1 and 2.  Is the 
Contractor to only remove the fencing within those areas and not replace/revise the existing 
fencing?

Answer: There is no existing fence through Work Areas 1 and 2 along Old Weather Service Road.  With IFB 
Amendment No. 2, Exhibit 1 has been updated to reflect this and Work Area 2 has been revised to 
remain outside of the limits of the Airport's perimeter fencing.

Q0040: Reference:  Bid Item No. 12 - Furnish and Install Gates and Security Fence

Please provide a drawing showing what fencing is to be removed and what new fencing and 
gates are to be installed.

Answer: The revised Price Schedule issued with IFB Amendment No. 2 eliminates this bid item.  These 
costs are now to be included in Bid Item 8 (Furnish and Maintain Temporary Facilities).  

Q0041: What is the maximum permissible elevation dirt can be filled to outside of the glide slope in 
each of the four dump areas?

Answer: This will be determined based on the Contractor's approved design.   Maximum allowable slopes 
for the fill areas are identified in the Statement of Work.
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Q0042: Will borings of the existing pile be provided, or are they the responsibility of the Design-
Build team?

Answer: Borings of the existing pile will not be provided.

Q0043: Are gate guards or security escorts required for the project and what hourly rates are we to 
use for our bid?

Answer: Neither gate guards or security escorts are required.

Q0044: If Area 4 is more cost effective to dump in, does the Contractor have permission to use this 
area?

Answer: Use of Area 4 will require Airports Authority approval and verification that the soil stockpile cannot 
be completely relocated to Areas 1 - 3, based on design and/or permitting constraints.

Q0045: Are there any time restrictions for working hours?

Answer: See response to Q0033.

Q0046: Where is the proposed haul roads sheet referenced on Pages 6 and 7 of Appendix 1 - 
Proposed Work Area drawings?

Answer: Exhibit 2 is the referenced sheet.

Q0047: Can the contractor obtain CAD files for this project?

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0048: Can the Contractor obtain a variance to encroach upon the glide slope for excavation of the 
existing pile and/or dumping in the dump areas?

Answer: No.  If necessary, nighttime runway closures (10:30pm - 6:00am) can be arranged through Dulles 
Airport Operations.  The Contractor is responsible for scheduling such closures and complying with 
all applicable requirements.

Q0049: Does the individual responsible for completing and sealing the design drawings, 
Specifications, and calculations under the contract need to be present on the site full-time?

Answer: No.
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Q0050: Is there a specific design the airport requires for crossing wetland areas?

Answer: No.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to develop a design in compliance with permitting 
agency requirements.

Q0051: Will the Contractor be compensated for moisture conditioning, if stockpile material is above 
optimum?

Answer: No.

Q0052: Do the haul roads marked as 'to be abandoned' need to be removed prior to filling, or can 
the contractor fill over them?

Answer: Contractor may fill over them.

Q0053: Does the existing haul road need to be re-paved upon completion?

Answer: Contractor shall restore Route 606 and Operations Road to equal or better condition than the pre-
construction condition.

Q0054: What work is to be included in Bid Item No. 14 - Contractor Hazardous Material Removal and 
Environmental Mitigation?

Answer: See response to Q0038.

Q0055: If concrete and/or organic material is found in the stockpile, is this permissible to be placed 
in the fill areas?

Answer: Yes, provided it is acceptable to the Engineer-of-Record and is not placed within the top four (4) 
feet of fill.  However, unless otherwise approved by the Airports Authority, debris larger than 18" 
shall be segregated at the Maintenance Facility Site and offsite disposal of such material will be by 
Change Order.

Q0056: Is controlled burning of the areas to be cleared permitted on site?

Answer: No.  Burning is not permitted.

Q0057: Is the Contractor required to re-spread topsoil on the waste areas and in the existing 
stockpile area once the pile has been removed?

Answer: Topsoil is required on all areas in accordance with Specification 32 92 00 (Turfs and Grasses).
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Q0058: Reference:  Bid Item No. 12 - Furnish and Install Gates and Security Fence

What drawing(s) show(s) the details of work items listed in Bid Item No. 12?

Answer: See response to Q0040.

Q0059: Are there any liquidated damages on the project?

Answer: See response to Q0031.

Q0060: Are there any protected animal species that may be living on airport grounds that may cause 
delays or stoppages

Answer: The Airports Authority is not aware of any such species.

Q0061: How will the Contractor be paid if existing subgrade does not pass proofroll?

Answer: There is no proofroll requirement.

Q0062: Can the Contractor be supplied with the preliminary permit paperwork that the airport has 
submitted?

Answer: Copies of existing wetlands permits that must be modified are being provided with IFB Amendment 
No. 2.  Development of the permit application and performance of any necessary studies is the 
Contractor's responsibility.    The Airports Authority's preliminary discussions with permitting 
agencies influenced some of the scope requirements that were incorporated into the IFB.

Q0063: Can the CAD files of the site information please be provided.  All of the enlarged PDFs do 
not contain all of the Runway Part 77 Surface information, as well as other information as 
shown on Exhibit 1.

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0064: Please provide mapping of all existing utilities within the project area.

Answer: Known existing utilities within proposed Work Areas 1 through 4, have been identified on the 
exhibits in Appendix 1 to the Statement of Work.
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Q0065: Please provide a breakdown of the 1.3 million cubic yards into the volume of top soil and the 
volume of subsoil.

Answer: There is approximately 105,000 CY of topsoil.

Q0066: Please provide the As-Built condition of Operations Road including any culvert type, size, 
material, and elevations in order to review and assess load-bearing capacity.

Answer: As-Built information is not available.  Photographs of existing conditions along Operations Road will 
be posted to the Airports Authority Website.

Q0067: Please identify the location and limits of the Airport Security fence.  Existing fencing 
appears to traverse the proposed work areas.

Please clarify if the fence will need to be relocated prior to earth moving or can it be 
reinstalled at the completion of the earth moving activities?

Please provide the detail requirements for any and all fences that will need to be removed, 
relocated, or reconstructed.

Answer: See response to Q0039.

Q0068: Reference:  Section 01 11 02 - Section 1.3

The referenced section requires interim GIS deliverables.  However, Section 3.1 only 
requires As Designed Data and As-Built Data.  If interim GIS information is required, please 
clarify the expectations for this information.

Answer: The As-Designed GIS Data for each design package is the "interim" deliverable.  The final 
deliverable is the As-Built Data.

Q0069: Section 01 71 13 Section 3.4.F requires that boundary lines be shown.  Please clarify if a 
boundary survey has been completed and will be provided to the Contractor.  Or, is the 
Contractor required to conduct and prepare a boundary survey.  If so, please clarify the 
limits for what boundary lines needs to be surveyed since the majority of the work appears 
to be occurring on the interior of the airport property.

Answer: This subsection has been deleted from the specification by IFB Amendment No. 2.
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Q0070: Please clarify the restrictions for conducting an aerial survey of the project area.  It appears 
that an aerial survey was conducted at the existing stockpile area.

Answer: There are no additional Airports Authority restrictions.  Standard operating procedures and 
approvals required for aerial surveys will apply.  The Contractor is responsible for obtaining any 
necessary clearances to complete aerial surveys.

Q0071: Please provided better identification of the potential structure demolition areas within the 
proposed stockpile areas.

Answer: Demolition areas were identified during the site visits.

Q0072: Section 32 92 00 provides a specification for sod.  Please clarify the specific areas for sod 
treatment, if required.

Answer: Use of sod is at the discretion of the Engineer-of-Record.

Q0073: Reference:  Item P-152 Excavation and Embankment

Please provide the compaction requirements for the stockpile areas.

Answer: See response to Q0016.

Q0074: Reference:  Item P-152 Excavation and Embankment

Please clarify the compaction testing requirements.  It states two (2A) tests per half-day.  
Please clarify if this is per stockpile area?

Answer: Testing is per embankment area being worked.  If two or more areas are being worked 
simultaneously in a day, each area, which has a compaction requirement defined by the Engineer-
of-Record, would be tested at the rate specified.

Q0075: Drawing 5 refers to a Typical Haul Road and says to see Haul Roads Sheet for additional 
details.  What details does this refer to since I do not see a proposed Haul Road Sheet?

Answer: It is referring to Exhibit 2.  The Airports Authority is providing allowable corridors for the Contractor 
to use.  The Contractor is responsible for designing this section of the road to meet its needs on this 
project.

Q0076: Since the next site visit is July 22 and that is also the last day to submit questions, can the 
date for questions be changed to allow for analysis of information from the site visit?

Answer: No.  The deadline for submitting questions remains as specified in the IFB.
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Q0077: Please clarify Item No. 14 on the Price Schedule - Hazardous Material Removal.  Do you 
know of or anticipate Hazardous Material?

Answer: See response to Q0038.

Q0078: What are the allowable working hours?  Is night work permitted?

Answer: See response to Q0033.  Night work is allowed.

Q0079: Is a security guard(s) required?

Answer: See response to Q0043.

Q0080: Reference:  Section 2.2 - Statement of Work

The referenced section indicates that additional soil was added to the stockpile since the 
completion of the Survey Report.  How accurate is the 1.3M CY number and if it is more, do 
we get paid additional per the unit price submitted?

Answer: The 1.3M CY of soil is inclusive of all soil added since the February 2013 survey report.

Q0081: Can the Airports Authority or the airport supply a CAD file of the site area which includes 
topographic information for bidding purposes?

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0082: Are there any work day/hour restrictions associated with this project, or with any of the 
sites?

Answer: See response to Q0033.

Q0083: Is there a compaction requirement for any of the fill sites?

Answer: See response to Q0016.

Q0084: Is there a compaction requirement for the existing stockpile site (future maintenance facility 
site) when existing stockpile removal is completed?

Answer: See response to Q0035.
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Q0085: Will consideration be made to extend the bid date?

Answer: See response to Q0036.

Q0086: The drawings provided show existing fencing in and around Work Areas 1 and 2.  Does this 
fencing exist and if so, please clarify what is to happen to the existing fencing in those 
areas?

Answer: See response to Q0039.

Q0087: Will the entire work site area continue to be a secured area throughout the duration of the 
project?

Answer: The area of the project is outside of the Airport Operations Area (AOA) and is not considered to be 
a "secured" area for the purpose of Airport Operations.  The Airports Authority has no intention of 
changing the fencing in the area, and it is expected that the Contractor will have no reason to do so.

Q0088: Exhibits 5 and 6 show portions of existing roadways that are labeled to be abandoned.  Do 
these areas need to be demolished and removed under this contract?

If not, do any of these roadways, if used by the Contractor during construction, need to be 
restored to their condition prior to the Contract?

Answer: Existing roadways to be abandoned may be covered without being demolished or removed.  
Operations Road is the only existing roadway within the Airport property available for use by the 
Contractor that must be restored to pre-construction condition or better.

Q0089: What is the typical section of the existing roadways in the fill areas?

Answer: That information is not available.

Q0090: Will the Airports Authority allow a phased submission of design documents in order to allow 
the Contractor to begin working on certain tasks prior to approval of the 100% Design 
Submission?

Answer: Yes.  The Contractor will be required to identify specific design packages and milestones in its 
Baseline Schedule.

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORTS AUTHORITY
SOLICITATION NO. 8-13-C006 - MAINTENANCE FACILITY SITE PREP

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS - REPORT NO. 001 - July 29, 2013PHASE 2

14 / 28

Disclaimer: All changes to the Solicitation requirements must be made by amendment to the Solicitation. Answers to questions, within this report, by themselves do not change the Solicitation requirements.

Prepared: 7/29/2013 5:34:17 PM



Q0091: Specification Section 01 35 40 refers to imported fill material --

- Why are these Specs included?

- Is there any instance when we cannot use the existing 1.3 million yard stockpile to make 
fills in the designated areas?

Answer: The section is included in the event the Contractor imports any soil material to the project.  All of the 
soil in the 1.3M CY stockpile is allowable for use in the embankment fills in the designated areas.

Q0092: What is the meaning of permanent access to permanent storm water management facilities?

Answer: Permanent access means a perpetual, unimpeded passageway.  If a wetland must be crossed to 
access a SWM facility, there must be a permitted wetland crossing in place.  If a SWM facility is on 
the far side of a large hill of fill, there must be a passageway to go around, not over, the fill to reach 
the SWM facility.  If stone or a similar material has been put in place within a corridor, which 
provides access to a SWM facility, such stone should be left in place.

Q0093: The Specs say that existing roads shall not be modified in flood plains or wetlands without 
prior approval of the Airports Authority.

Is there any instance when we will not get an approval to modify an existing road to be used 
as a Haul Road as shown on the plans?

Answer: Plans have not been provided.  The exhibits identify existing road corridors that are available for 
use by the Contractor.  The exhibits do not identify any modifications that would be needed in order 
to utilize an existing road for hauling.  Airports Authority approval to make modifications to an 
existing road, within a floodplain or wetland area, will be granted only after a sufficient design has 
been submitted and approved by the appropriate permitting and environmental agencies.  If a 
sufficient design is not provided, approval to modify an existing road, within a floodplain or wetland 
area, will not be given.

Q0094: Reference:  Bid Item No. 16

The referenced Bid Item requests 218,000 SY for dressing, grading, and applying seeding 
and/or sodding.

Is it the intention of the Airports Authority to apply seed only at Stock Pile Areas 1, 2, and 3, 
excluding Stock Pile Area 4?

Answer: Seeding of Area 4 is required only if it is used by the Contractor.  

See response to Q0044 for further clarification on the use of Area 4.
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Q0095: Reference:  Specification Section 32-92-00 (Turf and Grasses), Item 3.8 (Maintenance)

The referenced section requires a professional landscaping company to provide the 
required maintenance services.  Is it necessary for this type of job?

Answer: Yes.

Q0096: We would like the Airports Authority to release the latest CAD file showing existing 
topography ASAP.  This will allow us to develop preliminary E&S Plans and determine the 
volume of material that can fit within each area.  Please make this information available 
ASAP as it is holding up our ability to develop our plans which are needed in order for us to 
develop our pricing.

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0097:  - Bid Item No. 17 indicates: Rough grading of Yard Site to Final Grading Plan;
 - General Specifications, Division 01-10-00, Page 3, Item 1.5.A.2.d indicates: Maintenance 
Facility site has been rough graded according to Design Drawings and planted; and
 - Item 1.5.A.2.e, indicates: Grass has been established on the Maintenance Facility site --

Should spreading of topsoil and seeding on the Maintenance Facility site be considered part 
of this bid item?

Answer: Yes.

Q0098: We are requesting an extension to the bid date.  Additional time is needed in order to further 
develop conceptual plans (receiving CAD files would greatly assist in plan development), 
develop quantities, identify actual scope and quantities for DBEs to price, and price the 
work.

Answer: See response to Q0036.
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Q0099: Please clarify the submission of Form LOI.

I was told on the telephone that we would not need to submit Form LOI with the proposal.  
Per Section 5.1.6.b, we are to submit Form LOI with the proposal.

We would ask that this form be deferred until after receipt of the proposals by a day or two. 
(Similar to VDOT)  We may not know who we will be using until almost zero hour.  By 
requiring this information with the bid, we will be in the midst of assembling our submission 
(printing, binding...) and making decisions on who we will be using 12+/- hours prior to your 
deadline for submission.  It is almost certain that we will obtain qualified and competitive 
proposals from DBE and non-DBE firms after we "go to print".

Furthermore, it can be difficult to obtain the proper certifications, signatures, etc. in a timely 
manner from some firms.  Our concern is that we may be precluding qualified and 
competitive DBEs from participating; and we may not be giving the Airports Authority the 
most competitive proposal.

Answer: See response to Q0032.

Q0100: Will the Design-Builder submit documents directly to Loudoun County and other agencies 
for permit approval or will the Design-Builder submit documents to the Airports Authority so 
that the Airports Authority submits to the permitting agencies?

Answer: The Design-Builder (Contractor) will submit documents to the Airports Authority.  The Airports 
Authority will submit to the permitting agencies.

Q0101: Has an Environmental Assessment (EA) and an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) been 
done for the project site as shown in the exhibits?  If any, what permits have already been 
obtained by the Airports Authority for the project?

Answer: No permits have been obtained for this project to date.  All necessary NEPA clearances have been 
completed.

Q0102: Reference:  Section 01 41 00

The referenced section indicates that Contractor shall comply with the environmental and 
permitting commitments included in the FTA and FAA Records of Decision and Findings of 
No Significance - FONSI- for the Dulles Corridor Metrorail Project. Can a copy of this 
document please be provided?

Answer: These documents are being provided to Offerors with IFB Amendment No. 2 and will be posted to 
the Airports Authority website.
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Q0103: Reference:  Section 2.2 - Statement of Work

The referenced section indicates that additional materials have been added to the stockpile.  
Please clarify the amount added and please provide direction on how the Maintenance 
Facility site should be graded to account for this additional material.

Answer: The additional material is accounted for in the 1.3M CY identified in the Statement of Work.  All 
stockpiled materials necessary to comply with the rough grading plan identified in Exhibit 4 of 
Statement of Work Appendix 1 must be removed from the Maintenance Facility Site.

Q0104: Reference:  Section 5.3.1

The referenced section indicates that the Owner will delineate in the field all wetlands and 
regulated waters.  Please clarify what the Owner's role will be in coordinating with ACOE 
and Virginia.

Answer: Owner will provide an approximate field delineation of the approved jurisdictional wetlands and 
CAD files of wetland mapping.  It shall be the responsibility of the selected Contractor to field 
confirm the delineation and to obtain any approvals for impacts from the USACE and VDEQ.

Q0105: Reference:  Section 5.3.2

The referenced section indicates that the existing SWM facility at the maintenance site may 
be used by the Contractor.  Please provide documents regarding this facility's design and 
configuration for our review.

Answer: Additional information regarding the design and configuration of the existing SWM facility at the 
Maintenance Facility Site will be posted to the Airports Authority Website, as noted in IFB 
Amendment No. 2.

Q0106: Is a Specification present detailing the percentage (%) compaction of maximum density 
required at fill areas for this project?

Answer: See response to Q0016.

Q0107: What resolution can we expect if existing utilities are located underneath a proposed fill area 
and the utility company will not allow fill placed on top?

Answer: The Contract prohibits placing fill on top of an existing, active utility.

Q0108: If a fill area location is not utilized, will it remain a requirement to abandon any existing 
roads, shown on Sheet No. 2, or remove existing structures within the unused area?

Answer: No, neither removing existing structures or abandoning roads will be required in any unused area.
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Q0109: Reference:  Section 1.14 - General Specifications

The referenced section requires the establishment of a secure area.  As it appears this 
project will fall completely outside of the AOA, will we be required to install a security gate 
or any secure fence?

Answer: The project is completely outside of the Airport Operations Area (AOA).  The only gate for which the 
Contractor is responsible is the existing one to enter the Maintenance Facility Site from Route 606.  
The Contractor shall secure/lock the entrance to the Maintenance Facility Site/Contractor's staging 
area when it is not in use.

Q0110: Will personnel or vehicles be required to obtain [IAD] badges [or IAD vehicle inspections] for 
this project?

Answer: No.

Q0111: Will a copy of the existing topo file be made available before bid award?

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0112: Is there a presence of construction debris or unsuitable material in the existing stockpile to 
be hauled off site from airport property to a dump site?

Answer: Such material may be encountered, but may be placed in the fill areas in locations approved by the 
Engineer-of-Record.  However, unless otherwise approved by the Airports Authority, debris larger 
than 18" shall be segregated at the Maintenance Facility Site and offsite disposal of such material 
will be by Change Order.

Q0113: Is it required to keep topsoil and subsoil separated at proposed fill areas?

Answer: No.

Q0114: Is the 1.3M CY of material in the stockpile inclusive of material added after the February 2013 
survey?

Answer: Yes.

Q0115: Elevation of 14 CFR part 77 surface at sites are: site #1 (337-355), site #2 (330-342), site #3 
(outside RPZ), site #4 (outside RPZ ).  Is this correct assumption?

Answer: Yes, those are the approximate ranges of elevations of the 14 CFR Part 77.

See response to Q0037 for additional clarification.
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Q0116: When existing stockpile was placed, was any additional effort used to compact it, what 
compaction percentage [%] was targeted, or just dumped and worked with dozer?

Answer: There was no targeted compaction percentage.  It was dumped and worked with a dozer.

Q0117: How many cubic yard of topsoil is available within the existing stockpile, to be re-used to 
generate vegetation on new stocks and restoring vegetation on existing yard?

Answer: See response to Q0065.

Q0118: We have observed that dirt is still be hauled to the site and put on the stockpile.  How is this 
going to affect the 1.3 million CY amount of dirt?

Are we to bid only on moving 1.3 million CY and once we get to that number, we stop - no 
matter how much dirt is left in the stockpile?

Answer: The 1.3M CY of soil is inclusive of all soil still being hauled to the site.

Q0119: Will the existing Joint Permit Application, to be provided by the Airports Authority, include 
copies of the Wetland Delineation Report and Map, archaeological studies, and threatened 
and endangered species survey reports that cover the subject project area; or if not, will 
those studies be provided separately?

Answer: Copies of the existing wetlands permits are being provided with IFB Amendment No. 2.

Q0120: Can the constructed temporary Haul Road(s) at wetland or stream crossings be removed, 
assuming that the crossing(s) are not needed to permanently access a proposed stormwater 
management facility?

Answer: Yes, if the crossing(s) is not needed to access a permanent stormwater management facility, it may 
be removed.

Q0121: For the impact site construction monitoring and reporting as required by the existing VWP 
Individual Permit, please confirm that the Contractor is only responsible for monitoring and 
reporting of those impact(s) associated with the subject project area.

Answer: The Contractor is responsible for monitoring of impacts associated within the subject project area 
unless Contractor-obtained permit conditions or other regulatory requirements dictate.

Q0122: Is the topographic and boundary survey available in CAD prior to bid?

Answer: See response to Q0006.
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Q0123: What is the source of the identified flood plain within the project limits?

Answer: The approximate floodplain limits shown on the provided mapping are from the Airports Authority 
GIS system.  This information is based on best-available information from Airports Authority 
projects, FEMA mapping, HEC-2 / HEC-RAS data, and from the adjacent jurisdictions.  The 
Contractor is responsible for field verifying the flood plain limits adjacent to the project work areas.

Q0124: Reference:  Statement of Work Section 2.2

Referenced section indicates that soil has been added to the stockpile since the completion 
of this report.  How will the movement of this additional material be paid for?

Answer: This additional material is included in the 1.3M CY.

Q0125: Reference:  Statement of Work 5.2

Referenced section indicates that topsoil is fully segregated and may be reserved for 
establishing final grade.  Does this soil meet the requirements of Specification 32.92.00 
without screening and or modifications?  If not, what modifications will be required?

Answer: The topsoil has not been tested for the properties described in Specification 32 92 00 (Turf and 
Grasses).

Q0126: Reference:  Statement of Work 5.3.1

Referenced section indicates that fill shall be no higher than 20 feet below 14 CFR Part 77.  
Please define that elevation for Sites 1 through 4.

Answer: See response to Q0037.

Q0127: Reference:  Statement of Work 1.2

Referenced section indicates that the project is located entirely within the boundaries of 
Dulles Airport.

Statement of Work 5.7 indicates that for all work performed on Route 606, the Contractor 
shall perform Quality Control and Assurance activities.

Please clarify what work is required on VA Route 606.

Answer: There is no contract work required on VA Route 606.  However, if Contractor is required to make 
alterations to Route 606 to support Contractor's operations or to repair any pavement or facilities on 
Route 606 damaged by Contractor operations, such work shall conform to VDOT requirements, as 
outlined in the Contract Documents.
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Q0128: Reference:  Statement of Work 3.2

Referenced section specifies the penal sum of the performance and payment bond.  What 
are the specified liquidated damages?

Answer: See response to Q0031.

Q0129: Reference:  Item P-151.3.1

Referenced item indicates that trees, stumps, and brush shall be cut to a height of not more 
than 12 inches above grade.  Please confirm that no stumps or roots have to be removed 
from the fill sites.

Answer: As stated in the Statement of Work, "fill areas are to be cleared, but grubbing is not required."  
Therefore, in accordance with Specification P-151.3 (Clearing), stumps and roots do not have to be 
removed from fill areas.

Areas of permanent stormwater management facilities must be cleared and grubbed.  Therefore, in 
accordance with Specification P-151.4 (Clearing and Grubbing), stumps and roots must be 
removed from areas of permanent stormwater management facilities.

Q0130: Please define when Reserve Fill Area 4 can be used?  Is the fill required to be placed in Sites 
1 through 3 to capacity before Fill Area 4 can be used?

Answer: See response to Q0044.

Q0131: Please confirm that no deleterious material (i.e., asphalt, boulders, concrete, mud) is buried 
and that the stockpiled material will not have to be sorted, clreened or classified.

Answer: See response to Q0112.

Q0132: Please provide copy of USACA Section 404 permit.

Answer: Copies of the USACE Section 404 permit and VDEQ VWP permit that will require modification are 
being provided to Offerors with IFB Amendment No. 2.

Q0133: Please provide copy of the stockpile permits issued by VMRC and/or VEQ.

Answer: See response to Q0105.
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Q0134: Bid Item 14 calls for HAZMAT removal and environmental mitigation.  Please clarify both 
tasks and provide applicable environmental assessment reports.

Answer: See response to Q0038.

Q0135: Reference:  Section 5.5 / IFB

In the referenced section of the IFB, it is stated that the Contractor will be required to submit 
modifications to the current VA water protections individual permit and USACA Section 404 
individuals permit.  Since these permits are based on accepted wetland delineation, can we 
assume that no new wetland delineation will be required?

Answer: The current wetlands jurisdictional determination is valid through March 2021 and should be the 
basis for any modifications the Contractor proposes to the VDEQ VWP and USACE Section 404 
permits.  The Contractor is responsible for field verifying the location of the current delineation.

Q0136: Will the stream to be impacted require further delineations or documentation, or can the 
information included in the last permit be relied upon as sufficient?

Answer: The jurisdictional determination for the Waters of the United States identified in the project area is 
valid through March 2021.  Contractor is required to field verify the delineation for the determination 
of any impacts that the Contractor proposes and submit any permit modifications if required.

Q0137: It is stated that mitigation in the form of wetlands or stream compensation for up to 0.135 
acres of wetland impact and up to 75 feet of stream impact will be provided by the Airports 
Authority.  If more compensation should be required, will the Airports Authority obtain and 
provide it?

Answer: The Airports Authority has a current mitigation bank contract for wetland and stream credits that will 
be modified to provide the additional credits required, up to the limits identified in the Solicitation.  It 
shall be the Contractor's responsibility to identify the necessary impact amounts to the Airports 
Authority, with sufficient notice to allow for the credits to be obtained, prior to the Contractor 
proceeding with any land disturbance activities that would impact wetlands and/or streams.

Q0138: Will the Airports Authority provide topography of the fill area in CAD file format for use by 
bidders in advance of the bid date?

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0139: Will a Pre-Construction Conditions Survey of the Operations Road be required?

Answer: Yes.

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORTS AUTHORITY
SOLICITATION NO. 8-13-C006 - MAINTENANCE FACILITY SITE PREP

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS - REPORT NO. 001 - July 29, 2013PHASE 2

23 / 28

Disclaimer: All changes to the Solicitation requirements must be made by amendment to the Solicitation. Answers to questions, within this report, by themselves do not change the Solicitation requirements.

Prepared: 7/29/2013 5:34:18 PM



Q0140: Reference:  Dust Control

There is a discrepancy between General Spec 1.10.D and Technical Spec 171-1.1.1.

If we elect to build new dirt haul roads, is water sprinkling acceptable to control dust?  Or, 
the haul roads have to be covered with a stone layer, primed, and covered with a chemical 
dust suppressant material?

Answer: There is no discrepancy.  Method of dust control is up to the determination of the Contractor.  
However, the Airports Authority may require use of a chemical dust suppressant, as specified in 
Specification MC-171, if the Contractor's method of dust control is ineffective.  Use of calcium 
chloride is not permitted, per General Specification Section 01 10 00, 1.15.D.

Q0141: Reference: Exhibit 3, Appendix 1 - Statement of Work

The referenced exhibit shows a potential staging area and states that Contractor is to avoid 
any wetlands in staging area.  Have the wetlands in this area been delineated or will the 
Contractor be responsible for wetland delineation?

Answer: The wetland delineation will be provided to the Contractor.  The Airports Authority will provide 
preliminary field markers, which the Contractor is responsible for validating and supplementing as 
necessary.

Q0142: Reference:  Section 3.4 - Statement of Work

The referenced section indicates that electronic files will be made available to the Contractor 
for its reference and use following Contract Award.  Can the Airports Authority please make 
the CAD files for proposed work area exhibits and existing topography available during the 
bidding phase of this project for use by the Contractors in preparing their bids?

Answer: See response to Q0006.

Q0143: Reference:   Section 3.4 - Statement of Work (SOW)

The referenced section indicates that various documents will be made available to the 
Contractor for its reference and use following Contract Award.  Can the Airports Authority 
please make the environmental documents listed on Pages 6 and 7 of the SOW available 
during the bidding phase of this project for use by the Contractors in preparing their bids?

Answer: Copies of the Section 404 and Virginia VWP permits, as well as the environmental decision 
documents issued by the FTA and FAA, have been provided with IFB Amendment No. 2.
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Q0144: a.  Will the Contractor be required to utilize the Run-off Reduction Method to determine the 
amount of stormwater quality treatment required?

b.  Per the Run-Off Reduction Method, post-development area must be classified as 
impervious cover, managed turf, or forest and open space.  If the run-off reduction method 
is to be used, how should the haul roads to be left in place be classified?

Answer: Contractor is required to coordinate all stormwater permit requirements with the Virginia 
Department of Conservation and Recreation (VDCR) (as part of the Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality (VDEQ), effective 7/1/13), who has regulatory jurisdiction for all stormwater 
management and discharges concurrent with earth disturbance for this project.

Q0145: Will the requirements of the Run-Off Reduction Method be required for stormwater quantity 
management analysis or will the SWM quantity management requirements be met by 
meeting Minimum Standard 19 MS-19.

Answer: See response to Q0144.

Q0146: Please confirm that there is no need for archaeological surveys in the project area.

Answer: The Contractor has no responsibility for archaeological surveys in the project area.

Q0147: Have there been any modifications to the impacts included in the June 2011 USACE Section 
404 permit or the October 2011 VMRC Permit or the June 2011 VDEQ Individual Permit?

Answer: To date, no modifications to the listed permits have been submitted to the agencies responsible for 
issuing each of these permits.
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Q0148: Reference:  Statement of Work, Section 5.2 - Geotechnical

According to the referenced section, the stockpiles at the Maintenance Facility Site include 
topsoil and a mixture of fill soils.  This section also states that the topsoil is fully segregated 
and may be reserved for use in establishing final grades.  The following questions are 
related to the referenced section.

a.  What is the quantity of topsoil in stockpiles?

b.  Which stockpile or stockpiles contain the topsoil?

c.  Is there any geotechnical information including natural moisture contents, soil 
classifications per the Unified Soils Classification System, moisture-density relationships, 
and CBR values for the mixture of fill soils within the stockpiles?

Answer: a.  Approximately 105,000 CY of topsoil is available within the existing topsoil stockpile.

b.  The center pile contains the topsoil.  This will be depicted on the revised Exhibit 3 being issued 
with IFB Amendment No. 2.

c.  No.

Q0149: Can the Contractor assume that all material encountered in the stockpiles will be suitable as 
is to place as embankment and that material such as brush, hedge, roots, stumps, grass, 
and other organic matter, will not be encountered?

Answer: See response to Q0112.

Q0150: Is the existing topsoil stockpile to be treated like regular embankment material?

Answer: The existing topsoil stockpile may be treated like regular embankment material if desired.

Q0151: What is the existing moisture content of the existing stockpiles and does it meet the 
requirement of +/- 2 percent of optimum?  Will we be held to that, considering the pile are 
not of homogeneous material?

Answer: The existing moisture content(s) of the existing stockpiles and the optimum moisture content(s) 
have not been determined.  It is up to the Engineer-of-Record to finalize the technical specification 
regarding moisture requirements.
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Q0152: What degree of compaction, if any, is required at the fill sites for the stockpile embankments 
and can the Contractor assume the soil shall meet the requirements as is without the need 
for modification, etc.?  Can the material just be tracked in?

Answer: As indicated in the Statement of Work, the fill area compaction requirements are to be determined 
by the Engineer-of-Record, and the Technical Specification must be finalized, signed, and sealed 
by the Engineer-of-Record.

If tracking-in will provide adequate slope stability and meet erosion and sediment control 
requirements to the satisfaction of the Engineer-of-Record, the Airports Authority has no additional 
compaction requirement.

Q0153: Can the Contractor assume that the stockpiles are readily diggable and loadable without the 
need for downsizing, sorting, segregating?

Answer: The requirement for downsizing is dependent on the Contractor's means and methods.  The need 
for sorting and segregating is not anticipated.

Q0154: Who is the permitting authority of the project?

Answer: See General Specifications Section 01 41 00 (Regulatory Requirements and Permitting Process).

Q0155: As this project lies within the limits of Loudoun County, will the project be subjected to 
Loudoun County review or design requirements?

Answer: No.

Q0156: Will the Airports Authority provide digital topographic information or the required data to 
convert the digital or the photography into digital topography with vertical datum?

Answer: Topographic information will be provided in the CAD files issued as part of Amendment No. 2.  The 
coordinate systems used for the various files will be identified in a log sheet provided with the files.

Q0157: The Scope of Work (SOW) and Specifications identify that the Contractor must conform to 
FAA Part 77 for height restrictions.  It is our understanding that this is a 45 to 60 day 
process with the FAA OEG that asks for an evaluation of proposed heights based on an 
actual design at a specific location - coordinates and elevations.

Does the Airports Authority already know what is the maximum height allowed for those 
areas restricted so that designs can be prepared prior to an evaluation by the FAA?

Answer: See response to Q0037.
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Q0158: Will the Airports Authority provide copies of the environmental and permitting commitments 
identified in the FTA and FAA FONSI - Section 01 41 00 Part 1.3.B - prior to the bid for 
evaluation?

Answer: The referenced documents are being provided to Offerors with IFB Amendment No. 2.

Q0159: Will the Contractor be required to provide 30, 60, 90, and 100 percent CDs as is stated in the 
Airports Authority Design Manual?

Answer: Submittals, including CDs, shall be at the intervals as specified in the General Specifications 
Section 01 33 00 (Submittals).

Q0160: Please consider revising the requirement to submit Form LOI with the Bid.

We would suggest that the requirement be amended to require the low bidder to provide 
Form LOI within 24 hours of the bid opening.

Answer: See response to Q0032.

Q0161: The documents to be submitted with the bid contain three forms that require the Contractor 
to list the Subcontractors that will be working on the project. The three forms are:
 - Exhibit L - Form OL
 - Form CP
 - Page 5 of Form RC: Representations and Certification

Please consider only requiring From CP to be submitted with the bid.

Answer: See response to Q0032.
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